November 10, 2003

Mr. Fred R. Dacimo

Site Vice President
Entergy Nuclear Northeast
Indian Point Energy Center
295 Broadway, Suite 1
P.O. Box 249

Buchanan, NY 10511-0249

SUBJECT: INDIAN POINT 3 NUCLEAR GENERATING UNIT 3 - NRC INTEGRATED
INSPECTION REPORT 05000286/2003008

Dear Mr. Dacimo

On September 27, 2003, the US Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) completed an
inspection at the Indian Point Nuclear Generating Unit 3 (Indian Point 3). The enclosed
integrated inspection report documents the inspection findings, which were discussed on
October 8, 2003, with Mr. John Ventosa and other members of your staff.

The inspection examined activities conducted under your license as they relate to safety and
compliance with the Commission’s rules and regulations, and with the conditions of your
license. The inspectors reviewed selected procedures and records, observed activities, and
interviewed personnel.

Based on the results of the inspection, the inspectors identified three findings of very low safety
significance (Green). Two of the findings were determined to be violations of NRC
requirements. However, because of the very low safety significance and because they are
entered into your corrective action program, the NRC is treating these two findings as non-cited
violations (NCVs) consistent with Section VI.A.l of the NRC Enforcement Policy. If you contest
any NCV in this report, you should provide a response within 30 days of the date of this
inspection report, with the basis for your denial, to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN:
Document Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555-0001; with copies to the Regional
Administrator, Region [; the Director, Office of Enforcement; and the NRC Resident Inspector at
Indian Point 3.

Since the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001, the NRC has issued five Orders and several
threat advisories to licensees of commercial power reactors to strengthen licensee capabilities,
improve security force readiness, and enhance controls over access authorization. In addition
to applicable baseline inspections, the NRC issued Temporary Instruction 2515/148, "Inspection
of Nuclear Reactor Safeguards Interim Compensatory Measures," and its subsequent revision,
to audit and inspect licensee implementation of the interim compensatory measures required by
order. Phase 1 of Tl 2515/148 was completed at all commercial power nuclear power plants
during calender year 2002 and the remaining inspection activities for Indian Point 3 were
completed in January 2003. The NRC will continue to monitor overall safeguards and security
controls at Indian Point 3.
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In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC'’s "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its
enclosure, and your response (if any) will be available electronically for public inspection in the
NRC Public Document Room or from the Publicly Available Records (PARS) component of the
NRC'’s document system (ADAMS). ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html (the Public Electronic Reading Room).

Sincerely,

IRA/

David C. Lew, Chief
Projects Branch 2
Division of Reactor Projects

Docket No. 50-286
License No. DPR-64

Enclosure: Inspection Report 05000286/2003008
w/Attachment A: Supplemental Information and
Attachment B: Tl 2515/150 Reporting Requirements

cc w/encl: G. J. Taylor, Chief Executive Officer, Entergy Operations
M. R. Kansler, President - Entergy Nuclear Operations, Inc.
J. Herron, Senior Vice President and Chief Operations Officer
C. Schwarz, General Manager - Plant Operations
D. Pace, Vice President, Engineering
R. Edington, Vice President, Operations Support
J. McCann, Manager, Nuclear Safety and Licensing
J. Kelly, Director, Nuclear Safety Assurance
J. Comiotes, Director, Nuclear Safety Assurance
C. Faison, Manager, Licensing
H. Salmon, Jr., Director of Oversight
J. Fulton, Assistant General Counsel, Entergy Nuclear Operations, Inc.
P. Smith, Acting President, New York State Energy, Research,
and Development Authority
J. Spath, Program Director, New York State Energy Research
and Development Authority
P. Eddy, Electric Division, New York State Department of Public Service
C. Donaldson, Esquire, Assistant Attorney General, New York Department
of Law
T. Walsh, Secretary, NFSC, Entergy Nuclear Operations, Inc.
D. O’Neill, Mayor, Village of Buchanan
J. G. Testa, Mayor, City of Peekskill
R. Albanese, Executive Chair, Four County Nuclear Safety Committee
S. Lousteau, Treasury Department, Entergy Services, Inc.
Chairman, Standing Committee on Energy, NYS Assembly
Chairman, Standing Committee on Environmental Conservation, NYS Assembly
Chairman, Committee on Corporations, Authorities, and Commissions
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M. Slobodien, Director, Emergency Planning

B. Brandenburg, Assistant General Counsel

P. Rubin, Manager of Planning, Scheduling & Outage Services
Assemblywoman Sandra Galef, NYS Assembly
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

IR 05000286/2003-008, 06/29/2003 - 09/27/2003, Indian Point Nuclear Generating Unit 3.
Maintenance Effectiveness; Personal Performance During Non-Routine Plant Evolutions and
Events; Operability Evaluations.

The report covers a three month period of inspection by resident inspectors, regional operations
and project engineers, a reactor inspector, and a radiation specialist. Two Green non-cited
violations and one Green finding were identified. The significance of most findings is indicated
by their color (Green, White, Yellow, Red) using Inspection Manual Chapter (IMC) 0609,
“Significance Determination Process,” (SDP). Findings for which the SDP does not apply may
be Green or be assigned a severity level after NRC management review. The NRC’s program
for overseeing the safe operation of commercial nuclear power reactors is described in
NUREG-1649, “Reactor Oversight Process” Revision 3, dated July 2000.

A. NRC-ldentified and Self-Revealing Findings

Cornerstone: Mitigating Systems

Green. This self-revealing finding involved the failure of Entergy to ensure that
nitrogen regulating valve 1A-PCV-1276, which is a back-up to the instrument air
supplying the auxiliary feedwater regulating valves, is capable of performing its
design function. On August 14, 2003, the lack of nitrogen pressure back-up to
the instrument air system caused the auxiliary feedwater regulating valves to fail
open and resulted in a challenge to plant operators to maintain proper steam
generator levels.

This finding is greater than minor because it affected the Mitigating Systems
Cornerstone objective of equipment availability and reliability, in that the failure of
the auxiliary feedwater regulating valves to the fully opened position removed
one of the means of run-out protection to the motor driven auxiliary feedwater
pumps. This finding is of very low safety significance since the auxiliary
feedwater pumps were still capable of performing their design function (Section
1R12).

Green. The inspector identified a non-cited violation of 10 CFR 50, Appendix B,
Criterion XVI, “Corrective Actions,” involving the failure of Entergy to promptly
diagnose and correct an electrical ground on the 33 125 VDC system.

The finding is greater than minor because it affects the objective of the Mitigating
Systems Cornerstone to ensure the reliability and capability of critical safety
equipment (125 VDC station battery and emergency diesel generator)
performance, in that an unevaluated locked-in ground can potentially impact
equipment functionality. The finding is of very low safety significance since the
33 125 VDC system and affected 31 emergency diesel generator were capable
of performing their design functions. (Section 1R14).

Green. The inspectors identified a non-cited violation of 10CFR50, Appendix B,

Criterion V, “Instructions, Procedures and Drawings,” involving the failure of
Entergy to adhere to a quarterly surveillance procedure on August 4, 2003, and
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Summary of Findings (cont’d)

initiate actions required by Technical Specification (TS) 3.8.6 for the inoperable
31 station battery due to a low individual cell (No. 26) voltage.

This finding is greater than minor because subsequent evaluation determined
that the safety-related 31 station battery was adversely affected, and if left
uncorrected, this condition could have resulted in a more significant safety
concern (i.e., cell reversal) and loss of battery function. The safety significance
of this finding is very low because of the low probability that the single degraded
cell would have resulted in a cell reversal and placed an additional load on the
battery that would have been sufficient to reduce overall battery capacity below
its design basis loading specification. (Section 1R15).

B. Licensee Identified Violations

None
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REPORT DETAILS

Summary of Plant Status

The unit began the inspection period at 100% power.

On August 14, 2003, the reactor automatically tripped from 100% power following a complete
loss of offsite power due to the Northeast grid blackout. The plant remained in hot shutdown
(mode 3) until August 16, when problems with fuses and cable splices in the control rod drive
mechanism (CRDM) power supplies prevented normal rod withdrawal for a plant startup. On
August 17, the reactor was taken to cold shutdown in order to inspect and replace several
CRDM cable splices and rod control fuses. Following satisfactory repairs and CRDM testing, a
plant heatup commenced on August 20, and the reactor achieved criticality on August 21. The
plant returned online on August 22, and achieved full power on August 23. The plant remained
at 100% power for the remainder of the inspection period.

1. REACTOR SAFETY

Cornerstones: Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier Integrity, Emergency
Preparedness

1R01 Adverse Weather Protection

a. Inspection Scope (71111.01)

. The inspectors reviewed plant equipment performance during the Summer
months to verify that adequate design and operating margins were maintained
during the seasonally higher temperatures.

On July 22, 25 and 29, 2003, the inspectors reviewed the appropriateness of the
licensee’s response to numerous high temperature alarms on the main turbine
generator stator coolers. The inspectors also observed non-essential service
water (SW) inlet and outlet temperatures and the licensee’s SW flow
measurements to evaluate the extent of these conditions. The inspectors also
reviewed the licensee’s response to the out-of-specification temperature of the
condensate storage tank (CST) that occurred during several hot periods in July.
The inspectors verified that the CST temperature did not exceed the licensee’s
administrative limit which is five degrees below the maximum allowed in the
plant’s design basis (100F).

. During September 15 - 19, 2003, the inspectors reviewed the licensee’s severe
weather preparation procedures and the Action Plan developed to prepare the
Indian Point site for Hurricane Isabel. The plan included projected staffing
requirements for the emergency response organization (ERO), a prohibition on
all switchyard work, a rescheduling of site activities to minimize work that could
impact preparedness, the identification of contingency plans for potential
flooding, and the delivery of fuel oil to maximize quantities available for the
emergency diesel generators (EDGs) and other diesels on site. The inspectors
also performed internal and external plant walkdowns to assess the adequacy of
those preparations. The inspectors verified that the licensee appropriately

Enclosure



1R04
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addressed loose objects that were identified by the inspectors, which were not
secured or removed. The licensee issued condition report CR-1P3-2003-05138
to address these items.

The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s documented risk assessment and the
planned work schedule for the week of September 15 to determine the potential
for increased risk in the event that Hurricane Isabel passed close enough to the
site to have a direct impact on plant operation. The inspectors also reviewed the
licensee’s detailed risk assessment for removing portions of the isolation valve
seal water system from service during the projected storm to ensure that the
increase in risk did not exceed the licensee’s administrative limits on peak core
damage frequency (CDF).

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Equipment Alignment

Inspection Scope (71111.04Q)

The inspectors performed partial system walkdowns during periods of system train

unavailability in order to verify that the alignment of the available train was proper to
support the required safety functions, and to assure that the licensee had identified
equipment discrepancies that could potentially impair the functional capability of the
available train.

. During July 17 - 18, 2003, the inspectors performed a partial system alignment
check of the EDG fuel oil transfer system to verify operability and fuel supply to
all EDGs while the 31 fuel oil transfer system was out of service for planned
maintenance. The inspectors used the clearance (3C13-3EG) specified in work
order package IP3-03-03882, and System Operating Procedure SOP-EL-001,
“Diesel Generator Operation,” to verify the proper equipment alignment, and to
identify discrepancies that could impair the function of the EDGs or that could
potentially increase plant risk.

. During July 24 - 25, 2003, the inspectors performed a partial system alignment
check of the 31 residual heat removal (RHR) pump train to verify operability
while the 32 pump was out of service for planned preventive maintenance. The
inspectors used check-off list COL-RHR-1, “Residual Heat Removal System,”
and System Operating Procedure 3-SOP-RHR-001, “Residual Heat Removal
System,” to verify the proper train alignment, and to identify discrepancies that
could impact the function of the available train or that could potentially increase
plant risk.

. During September 24 - 25, 2003, the inspectors reviewed Clearance 3C13 3-
AFW-BFD-406A MMEC and performed a partial system alignment of the
auxiliary feedwater (AFW) system to verify operability and proper restoration of
the system following completion of planned maintenance on the 31 auxiliary
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boiler feedwater pump (ABFP) and its regulating flow valve BFD-406A to the 31
steam generator (SG).

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.
Fire Protection

Inspection Scope (71111.05Q)

The inspectors conducted fire protection tours in the fire zones listed below, to ensure
that the licensee was controlling transient combustibles in accordance with fire
protection procedure FP-9 “Control of Combustibles.” These tours were conducted to
ensure that ignition sources were controlled in accordance with FP-8, “Controlling of
Ignition Sources”; to ensure that fire protection equipment specified in the Pre-Fire
Plans (PFPs) was available and functional; and to assess the general material condition
of fire protection barriers and fire suppression equipment. These areas were selected
for inspection based on their relative fire initiation risk and the safe shutdown equipment
located in the areas.

. Fire Zone 23: AFW pump room on the 18-foot elevation of the AFW pump
building (PFP-47, “AFW Pump Room - Auxiliary Feedwater Building”).

. Fire Zones 23A, 25A, 27A, 28A, 30A, 31A, 89A: Filter rooms, heat exchangers,
boric acid tank area (excluding high radiation areas) on the 72' elevation of the
primary auxiliary building (PAB), (PFP-13, “Primary Auxiliary Building - Elevation
72'-0").

. Fire Zones 14, 66A, 67A: 480 VAC Switchgear Rm, 15' Control Bldg.; the unit
auxiliary transformer (UAT); and the station auxiliary transformer (SAT); (PFP-
25, “480V Switchgear Room - Control Building,” and PFP-62, “Main Transformer
Yard”). The inspectors observed the physical condition of the deluge system for
the UAT and SAT. The inspectors also evaluated the transformer oil cooling
systems for leakage and observed the general area for combustible material
loading.

. Zones 5A, 62A, 68A: 35'-0", 32'-6" elevations of PAB Pipe Tunnels (PFP-6A,
“Mini Containment and Pipe Tunnels - PAB/Fan House”). The inspectors also
reviewed Fire Barrier Analysis IP3-ANAL-FP-00756 for fire barriers in these
areas.

. Fire Zones 10, 36A, 101A, and 102A: 31, 32, and 33 EDG rooms (PFP-29,
“Diesel Generators 31, 32 & 33").

Fire Zone 73A: Upper electrical penetration area (PFP-33, “Upper Electrical
Penetration Area”).
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. Fire Zone 74A: Lower electrical penetration area (PFP-31, “Lower Electrical
Penetration Area”).

. Fire zones 3, 4, 8A, 9A, 10A, 11A, 12A, 13A, 14A, 15A, 16A, 69A: PAB 15'
elevation, including RHR pump rooms (PFP-5, “Primary Auxiliary Building -
Elevation 15'-0").

. Fire Zones 7A and 60A: Upper and lower electrical tunnels and cable spreading
room (PFP-30, “Lower Electrical Tunnel” and PFP-32, “Upper Electrical Tunnel”).

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Flood Protection Measures

Inspection Scope (71111.06)

The inspectors reviewed Section 16.1 of the Final Safety Analysis Report (FSAR) that
describes the flood protection features of the plant and flood mitigation equipment
available to plant operators in the event of internal flooding from a potential break of a
large pipe in the circulating water, condensate water, fire water, or city water systems.
The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s procedure for response to an internal
flooding event, as described in off-normal operating procedure ONOP-RW-3, “Plant
Flooding.” The inspectors reviewed the Indian Point 3 Individual Plant Examination for
External Events (IPEEE). The IPEEE did not identify an external flooding scenario that
could lead to core damage with a probability in excess of 1E-6. The inspectors reviewed
operability test data for the turbine building (lower level) Level Sensors (LC-1240S and
LC-12415S) in the condenser trench at the 3'-3” elevation, which would alert operators to
potential flooding in the 6900 volt switchgear. The inspectors toured the PAB, the AFW
pump room, the pipe penetration area, the plant intake structure, the vital 480 volt
switchgear room and the turbine building to verify that the floor drains were not blocked
by debris. The inspectors also observed the general areas around the condenser water
boxes to ensure that flood water flow paths were not obstructed.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Heat Sink Performance

Inspection Scope (71111.07B)

Based on a plant specific risk assessment and recent operational experience, the
inspectors selected the EDG and containment fan cooler unit (FCU) heat exchangers
(HXs) for this review. The EDG HXs include the jacket water and lube oil coolers which
provide cooling to the EDGs to support continuous operation under full-load conditions.
The five FCUs together with the containment spray system provide the design heat
removal capacity for the containment building following a loss-of-coolant accident
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assuming that the core residual heat is released to the containment as steam. The
EDG and FCU HXs transfer their heat loads directly to the service water (SW) system.
The SW system was designed to supply cooling water from the Hudson River (the
ultimate heat sink) to various heat sources to ensure a continuous flow of cooling water
to systems and components necessary for plant safety either during normal operation,
or during abnormal or accident conditions.

In their response to Generic Letter 89-13, “Service Water System Problems Affecting
Safety-Related Equipment,” Entergy committed to perform frequent periodic cleaning of
essential SW HXs in lieu of testing for degraded performance. To ensure compatibility
with commitments, the inspectors reviewed Entergy’s inspection, cleaning, and
performance monitoring methods and frequencies. The inspectors compared
surveillance test and inspection data to the licensee’s established acceptance criteria to
verify that the results were acceptable and that system HX operation was consistent with
the design. The inspectors walked-down the selected HXs, the two installed SW “bio
boxes” (used to monitor biological fouling in the SW system), the sodium hypochlorite
system, and the SW system to assess the material condition of these systems and
components. The inspectors also evaluated the FCU cooling coils for indications of
boric acid residue (indicative of potential reactor coolant system leakage) during a
detailed containment walkdown.

The inspectors reviewed a selected sample of CRs related to the EDG and FCU HXs,

and the SW system to ensure that Entergy was appropriately identifying, characterizing,
and correcting problems related to these systems and components.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

In-service Inspection

Pressure Vessel Head Ultrasonic Inspection

Inspection Scope (71111.08 & Temporary Instruction 2515/150)

During the twelfth refueling outage (3R12) at IP3, the inspectors evaluated outage
activities such as reactor pressure vessel (RPV) closure head penetration visual
examination (VT), ultrasonic tests (UT), and eddy current tests (ECT). The licensee’s
activities performed in response to NRC Bulletins 2001-01 and 2002-02,
“Circumferential Cracking of Reactor Pressure Vessel Head Penetration Nozzles,” were
inspected against the requirements of Temporary Instruction (TI) 2515/150 and the
requirements of Commission Order EA-03-009, issued on February 11, 2003. The
description of the inspection scope and results are in Section 40A5 of this report, as
specified by the TI.

Findings

No findings of significance were identified.
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1R11 Licensed Operator Requalification Inspection

1.

a.

Biennial Review by Regional Specialist

Inspection Scope (71111.11B)

The following inspection activities were performed using NUREG-1021, Rev. 8,
“Operator Licensing Examination Standards for Power Reactors,” Inspection Procedure
Attachment 71111.11, “Licensed Operator Requalification Program,” and NRC Manual
Chapter 0609, Appendix I, “Operator Requalification Human Performance Significance
Determination Process (SDP),” as acceptance criteria.

The inspectors reviewed documentation of the plant’s operating history since the last
requalification program inspection, as contained in NRC inspection reports and licensee
condition reports. The inspectors also discussed facility operating events with the
resident staff to assess whether any operational events were indicative of training
deficiencies.

The inspectors reviewed examples of the comprehensive written exams (administered
by the licensee in March - April, 2002), and observed the administration of three annual
operating tests to one operating crew. The inspectors reviewed the quality of the written
exams and the annual operating tests to ensure they met or exceeded the criteria of the
Examination Standards and 10 CFR 55.59.

The inspectors also observed operating tests administered during the week of July 28.
Two scenarios were administered to an operating crew and four to a staff crew. The
inspectors reviewed the exam schedule and noted that the two scenarios scheduled for
the operating crew were also two of the four scenarios scheduled to be administered to
the staff crew on the next day. This day-to-day overlap had the potential to reduce the
discrimination validity and integrity of the examination. The training staff subsequently
replaced one of the scenarios and initiated CR-IP3-2003-04469. The inspectors also
observed simulator performance during the examinations, and reviewed performance
testing and discrepancy reports to verify simulator compliance with the requirements of
10 CFR 55.46. A sample of records for requalification training attendance, license
reactivations, and medical examinations were reviewed for compliance with license
conditions and NRC regulations. Instructors, training/operations management
personnel, and a sample of individual licensed operators were interviewed for feedback
regarding the implementation of the licensed operator requalification program.

On August 13, 2003, the inspectors conducted an onsite review of licensee
requalification exam results. These results reflected operator performance on the
annual operating test. The inspection assessed whether pass rates were consistent
with the guidance of NRC Manual Chapter 0609, Appendix I, “Operator Requalification
Human Performance Significance Determination Process (SDP).” The inspectors
verified that:

. Crew pass rate was greater than 80%. (Pass rate was 100%.)
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. Individual pass rate on the dynamic simulator test was greater than or equal to
80%. (Pass rate was 98%.)

. Individual pass rate on the walk-through test was greater than or equal to 80%.
(Pass rate was 100%.)

. Overall pass rate among individuals for all portions of the exam was greater than
or equal to 75%. (Pass rate was 98%.)

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Requalification Activities Review by Resident Staff

Inspection Scope (71111.11Q)

On September 8, 2003, the inspectors observed simulator training for licensed operators
of Operations Team "3A" (requalification cycle 03.03.04). The inspectors reviewed an
“as-found” simulator scenario, performed per lesson plan no. LRQ-SES-07, "Loss of All
AC," to determine if the scenario contained 1) clear event descriptions with realistic
initial conditions; 2) clear start and end points; 3) clear descriptions of visible plant
symptoms for the crew to recognize; and, 4) clear expectations of operator actions in
response to abnormal conditions.

During the simulator exercise, the inspectors evaluated the team'’s performance for 1)
clarity and formality of communications; 2) correct use and implementation of
emergency operating procedures (EOPs) and off-normal operating procedures
(ONOPs); 3) the operators’ ability to properly interpret and verify alarms; and 4) the
operators’ ability to take timely actions in a safe direction based on transient conditions.
In addition, the inspectors evaluated the control room supervisor’s ability to exercise
effective oversight and control of the crew’s actions during the exercise. The inspectors
verified that the feedback from the instructors was thorough, that they identified specific
areas for improvement, and that they reinforced management expectations regarding
crew competencies in the areas of procedure use, communications, and peer checking.
The inspectors also evaluated the adequacy of the licensee’s post-scenario critique.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified. Minor deficiencies identified by the

inspectors and the licensee were documented in CR-IP3-2003-5020 and CR-IP3-2003-
5039.
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1R12 Maintenance Effectiveness

a.

Inspection Scope (71111.12Q)

The inspectors reviewed the following maintenance activities, systems and components,
and recent performance issues to assess the effectiveness of the licensee’s
Maintenance Rule program implementation, referencing 10 CFR 50.65, “Requirements
for monitoring the effectiveness of maintenance at nuclear power plants,” and
Regulatory Guide 1.1.60, “Monitoring the Effectiveness of Maintenance at Nuclear
Power Plants.” The inspectors verified that the licensee was implementing their
Maintenance Rule program in accordance with NRC regulations and guidelines, properly
classifying equipment failures, and using the appropriate performance criteria for
Maintenance Rule systems in 10 CFR 50.65 (a)(2) status.

The inspectors also reviewed work orders (WOs), and associated post-maintenance test
(PMT) activities, to assess whether 1) the effect of maintenance work in the plant had
been adequately addressed by control room personnel; 2) work planning was adequate
for the maintenance performed; 3) the acceptance criteria were clear and adequately
demonstrated operational readiness consistent with design and licensing documents;
and 4) the equipment was effectively returned to service. The following maintenance
activities and associated documents were observed and evaluated:

. On August 5 - 6, 2003, the inspectors observed a two-year preventive
maintenance (PM) overhaul of the 31 EDG, and observed work in the field
performed under WOs I1P3-02-20694, IP3-02-20544, and IP3-02-20733.
Additionally, the inspectors observed portions of the post-maintenance testing
performed using procedure 3PT-MO79A, “31 EDG Functional Test,” which was
completed satisfactorily.

. During the loss of offsite power event and concurrent loss of instrument air on
August 14, 2003, the installed nitrogen back-up for instrument air supply to the
auxiliary feedwater regulating valves failed. This was attributed to the failure of
nitrogen regulating valve IA-PCV-1276. The failure was documented in CR-IP3-
2003-04717 and evaluated by systems engineering, which concluded that the
AFW system was still capable of performing it’s intended safety function. The
inspectors evaluated the licensee’s maintenance program for the nitrogen
system components.

. On September 22, 2003, the licensee discovered that the electro-thermal links
on the 33' Control Building fire damper FP-DF-11 were not electrically terminated
for more than three days following surveillance test 3PT-R82 (CR-IP3-2003-
05158). The damper is located in the fire wall separating the cable spreading
room from the turbine building. The links would have functioned to close the
damper in the event of a nearby fire, but would not have functioned if the carbon
dioxide suppression system in the cable spreading room was actuated. The
inspectors discussed with the site fire protection engineer the potential impact of
this condition on the fire protection features (fire barriers, etc.) in the control
building, and on the carbon dioxide suppression system. The inspectors also
observed the subsequent repairs made to restore the links to functionality.
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Findings

Introduction. A Green self-revealing finding was identified involving failure of Entergy to
ensure that nitrogen regulator (valve IA-PCV-1276), which is a back-up to the instrument
air supplying the auxiliary feedwater regulating valves, is capable of performing its
design function. During the loss of offsite power event on August 14, 2003, the lack of
back-up nitrogen pressure caused the auxiliary feedwater (AFW) regulating valves to fail
to the full open position and challenged plant operators to maintain proper steam
generator water levels.

Description. The inspectors determined that the nitrogen supply regulator IA-PCV-1276,
which backs-up instrument air to the auxiliary feedwater regulating valves, failed to
perform its intended design function during the loss of offsite power and concurrent loss
of instrument air on August 14, 2003. This resulted in a loss of motive force to the AFW
regulating valve air-operators and the regulating valves failed full open (by design).

On August 14, the motor-driven and turbine-driven AFW pumps started automatically in
response to the loss of offsite power event. When the instrument air system pressure
was lost, the nitrogen back-up system also failed to provide adequate pressure to the
AFW regulating valve operators causing the valves to go full open with all three AFW
pumps running. This resulted in the unregulated addition of feedwater to all four steam
generators (SGs), and caused the level in the 34 SG to raise above its normal band.
Also, the failure of the auxiliary feedwater regulating valves to the fully opened position
removed one of the means of run-out protection to the motor driven auxiliary feedwater
pumps. Consequently, operators took appropriate action to secure the AFW pumps to
maintain normal steam generator water levels and compensated for the lack of
feedwater flow throttling capability.

The inspectors determined that Entergy does not have a scheduled maintenance or
performance monitoring program established for valve IA-PCV-1276. The absence of
such a program or process has prevented the maintenance staff from identifying
potential performance problems with the valve. The inspectors noted that the installed
IA-PCV-1276 was a Tescom 26-1600 Series pressure reducing regulator, designed for
high pressure applications. The manufacturer’s published discharge specifications for
this regulator cover a range of inlet pressures from a minimum of 500 psig to a
maximum of 6000 psig. However, the regulator’s nitrogen supply pressure is 90 psig,
well below the manufacturer’s specified operating range. Following the August 14 self-
revealing failure of the regulator IA-PCV-1276, the regulator was replaced with an
identical new regulator. However, the inspector identified that the post-maintenance
testing was insufficient to demonstrate that the regulator could perform its intended
back-up function. Further, Entergy did not have an evaluation to support the specific
application of this high pressure regulator in a low pressure system.

Analysis. This finding is greater than minor because it affected the Mitigating Systems
C ornerstone objective of equipment availability and reliability, in that the failure of the
auxiliary feedwater regulating valves to the fully opened position removed one of the
means of run-out protection to the motor driven auxiliary feedwater pumps. The
attributes of design control and equipment performance were compromised by this
specific performance deficiency. The finding was assessed using Phase | of the
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Significance Determination Process for Reactor Inspection Findings for At-Power
Situations and was determined to be of very low safety significance (Green). The
finding is of very low safety significance because the AFW pumps were still capable of
injecting water into the steam generators and operators were able to manually
compensate for the failure of the feedwater regulating valves. This finding was entered
in Entergy’s corrective action program as CR-IP3-2003-04717 and CR-I1P3-2003-04779.
This finding is also associated with the Human Performance and Problem Identification
and Resolution Cross-Cutting Areas. (FIN 05000286/2003008-01)

Enforcement. No violation of regulatory requirements occurred.

Maintenance Risk Assessment and Emergent Work Evaluation

Inspection Scope (71111.13)

The inspectors reviewed maintenance risk assessments, work request tags (WRTS),
corrective maintenance WO packages for emergent and scheduled work, observed the
repair activities in the plant, and discussed the degraded conditions with cognizant plant
personnel (system engineers, technicians, and maintenance workers). The following
activities were reviewed:

. WO IP3-03-03956; 34 SG AFW Flow Oscillations: Venting the FT-1203
Transmitter in accordance with SOP-INST-001, “Filling, Venting, and Flushing of
Instrument Impulse Lines”; July 24, 2003 (CR-IP3-2003-04303).

. WOs IP3-02-01370, -02-19708, and -02-19375: Repair of slight oil leak on 32
RHR lower motor bearing, motor PM inspection/repair, and 32 RHR pump
functional test; July 21 - 24, 2003.

. WO IP3-03-23914; 31 FCU excess boron accumulation in the weir drain slot;
follow-up inspection of 34 FCU; September 17, 2003 (CR-1P3-2003-05133).

During the monthly inspection for boron deposits on surfaces inside containment,
the licensee observed an excess accumulation of boron around the weir drain
slot of the 31 fan cooler unit (FCU). Upon further investigation of the internal
surfaces of the FCU, the licensee determined that the boron originated from a
pressure relief valve (SI-733B) on the 31 RHR HX that had leaked through its
flange connection. The valve was located near the air inlet of the 31 FCU, and
leakage from the valve was entrained into its inlet flow and condensed inside the
FCU. The licensee concluded that the valve had leaked during the recent forced
outage with the RHR system was in operation. The inspectors discussed the
details of this situation with the primary systems engineering supervisor, and
reviewed the licensee’s process for completing the monthly boron inspections.
The 31 FCU weir slot was subsequently cleaned to remove the excess boron.

. WO IP3-02-20694: Two-year PM overhaul of the 31 EDG; September 21 - 24,
2003.
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. WO IP3-03-04077: Service Water Leak on 32 Common Control Room Air
Conditioning (CCRAC) Unit Copper Pipe Braze Joint (CR-1P3-2003-05226).

Findings
No findings of significance were identified

Personnel Performance During Non-Routine Plant Evolutions and Events

Inspection Scope (71111.14)

Offsite Grid Disturbance

On August 14, 2003, a Northeast grid blackout caused the loss of all sources of 138 KV
and 13.8 KV offsite power at the Indian Point Energy Center. The inspectors responded
to the IP3 control room to observe the operators’ response to this event. The loss of off-
site power resulted in an expected automatic reactor trip with a loss of the normal heat
sink. After the automatic reactor trip, there were a number of complications which
included the premature lifting of the main steam safety valve (MS 45-4) on the 34 SG;
failure of the diesel station air compressor to start; failure of the nitrogen backup to the
instrument air system, and the resulting failure of the AFW flow control valves to
regulate flow to the SGs; failure of the 32 source range nuclear instrument to energize;
and a loss of spent fuel pool cooling. In addition, the technical support center (TSC)
diesel generator did not load after it automatically started, and subsequently tripped on
over speed. All three EDGs started automatically and supplied power to vital plant
equipment while the off-site sources were unavailable. However, a Notice of Unusual
Event (NUE) was declared base